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March 15, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Mark Rhea 
Senior Property Manager 
Zeller Realty Group® 
500 North Michigan Avenue 
Suite 2008 
Chicago, Illinois 60611 
 
Re: Radiation Screening Summary Report for Sewer Repair  
 500 N Michigan Ave  
 Chicago, Illinois 60611 
 
Dear Mr. Rhea: 
 
Pursuant to conditions specified in a permit (see attached) issued by the Chicago Department of Public 
Health, radiation screening survey was required to be performed during sewer repair related to the above 
referenced Site. The screening survey was performed associated with sewer repair along the east side of 
the building along Illinois Street. The Chicago Department of Public Health (CDPH) granted the 
screening permit to Werner Plumbing and RPS GaiaTech on January 14, 2016. On February 17, 2016, 
Terrence Sheahan of the CDPH indicated that radiation screening approval had been included in CDOT’s 
data, and approved the Ewing-Doherty Mechanical Inc.’s permit (Permit #DOT590226) on February 10, 
2016. The summary report describes current onsite activities conducted between February 22, 2016 and 
March 7, 2016.  
 
Summary of Significant Site Activities – February 22, 2016  
 
During February 22, 2016, RPS GaiaTech was onsite to conduct soil screening during saw cutting and 
asphalt/concrete removal in Illinois Street. The purpose for removing the asphalt/concrete was to obtain a 
soil disposal profile/landfill acceptance, before the sewer repair was performed. Prior to screening, the 
area background level was obtained during the morning and recorded. The daily background level was 
used in conjunction and compared to the levels equivalent to the USEPA action level for the Streeterville 
area. The USEPA Action Level for Chicago’s Streeterville area is 7.1 picocuries per gram (pCi/g) total 
radium (Ra-226 + Ra-228). 
 
All surveying was completed with a Ludlum model 3 meter and attached shielded or unshielded NAI 2 x 
2 meter. Walk over surveying was completed with the shielded probe. All readings were generally fewer 
than 2 times the daily background level and well below the instrument action level during this activity. 
Soil screening was completed at the surface directly under the removed asphalt and concrete. No 
additional soil was removed or disturbed except for enough soil to fill a 16 ounce sample jar for waste 
profile acceptance. On March 2, 2016, Waste management Laraway landfill granted the disposal permit 
for spoils generated during the sewer repair as non-hazardous waste. 
 
Summary of Significant Site Activities – March 3-4, 7, 2016  
 
During March 3, 2016 to March 4, 2016 and March 7, 2016, RPS GaiaTech was onsite to conduct soil 
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screening during soil removal for unearthing utilities under Illinois Street. The purpose for unearthing 
utilities wa for repair and replacement of a broken sewer main. There were two breaks in the pipe, one 
located midway through the sidewalk and another directly to the south of the curb on Illinois Street. Prior 
to screening each day, the area background level was obtained each morning and recorded. The daily 
background level was used in conjunction and comparison to the levels equivalent to the USEPA action 
level for the Streeterville area. All surveying was completed with a Ludlum model 3 meter and attached 
shielded or unshielded NAI 2 x 2 meter. Walk over surveying was completed with the shielded probe and 
deeper excavation surveys were completed with the unshielded probe.  
 
The excavation was from the middle of Illinois Street (4 x 10 feet) south to the middle of the sidewalk on 
the south side of the building (3.5 x 8 feet). No suspect readings were found during this activity. Soil 
screening was completed in 12-inch lifts in all excavated locations. Soils were removed down to a depth 
of 9 feet below grade. Again, all readings were generally fewer than 2 times the daily background level 
and well below the instrument action level.  
 
Soil Waste Disposal 
 
An estimated 60 cubic yards of soil and concrete (3 dump trucks) were removed from the site and dumped 
at the Laraway Landfill.   
 
As part of the permit conditions this letter has been forwarded to: 
 

Chicago Department of Public Health  US Environmental Protection Agency 
Attention: Ms. Rahmat Begum   Attn. Verneta Simon 
333 South State Street, Room 200  77 West Jackson Blvd. 
Chicago, Illinois 60604    Chicago, Illinois 60604 

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 312-262-4330. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
RPS GaiaTech       

 
John H. Yang, PG 
Senior Vice President 
 
cc:  Rob Hudgens -Ewing-Doherty Mechanical, Inc. 

Verneta Simon – USEPA  
Rahmat Begum – Chicago Department of Public Health 
 

 
Attachments 

Attachment 1 - Site Photos   
Attachment 2 - Department of Public Health City of Chicago Approval 
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Photo 1: View facing south of excavating above sewer main on Illinois Street  Photo 2:  View facing south of sewer line break directly below curb (foreground) 

 

 

 
Photo 3:  View facing northwest of excavation on Illinois Street (sewer runs 

underneath 3 foot water main worker is standing on) 
 Photo 4:  View facing north of pumping out excavation 
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Photo 5: View facing north of excavating sidewalk for second break in sewer line  Photo 6:  View facing south of clay sewer line with break in foreground 

 

 

 
Photo 7:  View facing south of removal of clay sewer line while active  Photo 8:  View facing south of installing new sewer line 
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